CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2004
(In Thousands)

Primary Government Component Units
Treasure
Business- San Francisco Island
Governmental Type Redevelopment Development
Activities Activities Total Agency Authority

ASSETS :
Current assets:

Deposits and investments with City Treasury..........ccce.... $ 729748 $ 674,887 $ 1,404635 § - $ 2,096

Deposits and investments outside City Treasury................ 100,151 8,295 108,446 179,127 -

Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectible amounts ’ :

of $40,342 for the primary government):

Property taxes and penalties 34,595 - 34,595 - -

Other local taxes........c.ccovvuveenne 163,017 - 163,017 - -

Federal and state grants and subventions..........c.cceceeucue. 161,842 47,026 208,868 - -

Charges for SEIVICES.........cocuireneenninnenisr e, 13,731 139,538 153,269 - 618

Interest and Other.........cooeevcceeienniinrcr e 4,730 45,815 50,545 8,312 3
LOaNS receivable........ueeceeeceerreniiiiensenieienaeennneenns - 85 85 21 -
Capital lease receivable from primary government - - - 1,424
Due from component unit .. reereesere e 849 - 849 - -
INVENLOMIES. ...vereceeereiecnereeeeeeeeeereeanesssee s eanee . - 47,864 47,864 - -
Deferred charges and other assets........ccoceeireneiecncnnneeees 9,309 17,615 26,924 - -
Restricted assets:

Deposits and investments with City Treasury................... - 15,732 15,732 - -

Deposits and investments outside City Treasury.............. - 47,121 47,121 199,351 -

Grants and other receivables....................... - 740 740 937 -

Total CUITent @SSetS.......coveeeererrescnneniirinnisenrenssaeesennnnas 1,217,972 1,044,718 2,262,690 389,172 2,717
Noncurrent assets:
Loans (net of allowance for uncollectible amounts

of $173,367 and $116,168 for the primary government

and component units, respectively)

TECEIVADIE. ...c.veereteeeieeeeet ettt 214,650 768 215,418 5,777 -
Capital lease receivable from primary government............. - - - 192,294 -
Deferred charges and other assets........cccoueeeireeiccinnenns 13,301 69,069 . 82,370 9,044 -
Restricted assets:

Deposits and investments with City Treasury.................. - 407,740 407,740 - -

Deposits and investments outside City Treasury. - 278,665 278,665 36,670 -
Grants and other receivables...........cccccceeirnnnnnnnes - 22,764 22,764 - -
Property held for resale ........ccooriniioneneciininiinciee - - - 13,986 -
Capital assets:
‘Land and other assets not being depreciated................... 389,317 834,550 1,223,867 114,260 -

Facilities, infrastructure, and equipment, net of

EPreCiation.........ccecrveiieiiisiiiirensinessnese st 1,925,246 7,648,775 9,574,021 119,730 -

Total capital assets.........ccceverrerernimnenneieneeene 2,314,563 8,483,325 10,797,888 233,990 -
Total noncurrent assets.. . 2,542,514 9,262,331 11,804,845 491,761 -
Total @SSets....cceveerereeneeririeee et .. $3760486 $10,307,049 $14,067,535 $ 880,933 $ 2,717
(Continued)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

24



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
Statement of Net Assets (Continued)

June 30,

2004

(In Thousands)

Primary Government Component Units
Treasure
Business- San Francisco Island
Governmental Type Redevelopment Development
Activities Activities Total Agency Authority
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable.......c..ceeeriiniiiennnnnnnneescennas $ 148204 $ 128,728 $§ 277,022 § 8,306 $ 703
ACCrUEd PAYFOIL.....cvereeeeiiiiiererier et 42,611 35,024 77,635 - 19
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay........ccocceeeniiiiniiinnn 63,682 40,694 104,376 1,168 -
Accrued workers' compensation.........c.ceecceiiniiiniininnenne 45,138 40,108 85,246 - -
Estimated claims payable.......cocovimriniennnnicnninniniinnnn, 19,881 15,463 35,344 - -
Bonds, loans, capital leases, and other payables............... 146,646 128,851 275,497 53,367 -
Capital lease payable to component unit............ccoveeeeieunene 1,424 - 1,424 - -
Accrued interest payable.........ccoveeiiniinienis 7,185 11,756 18,941 92,507 -
Unearned grant and subvention revenues... 5,286 - 5,286 5,287 -
Due to primary government............... - - - 849 -
Internal DalanCes.......ccoeeeveeereeerecrerireiiitetenerre e s ane 32,419 (32,419) - - -
Deferred credits and other liabilities.........c...ccccceurniae . 120,764 117,002 237,766 1,861 -
Total current liabilities..........ccceeue. . . 633,330 485,207 1,118,537 163,345 722
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Bonds, loans, capital leases, and other payables............... - 17,013 17,013 - -
Accrued interest payable.........cooeveiieneninnennencnininnes - 34,807 34,807 - -
Other..... rreeseessressesseessaesan s nseaeaes - 30,390 30,390 - -
Total liabilities payable from
restricted assets.....coceeecerriiiiniinienn e - 82,210 82,210 - -
Noncurrent liabilities: )
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay 64,735 33,196 97,931 1,565 -
Accrued workers' compensation..........veveeerericsecsiiiinninennnns 168,492 143,388 311,880 - -
Estimated claims payable........ccooermniiiennicnicniiiniiinnnnn 59,924 32,168 92,092 - -
Bonds, loans, capital leases, and other payables............... 1,334,970 5,171,501 6,506,471 700,224 -
Capital lease payable to component unit..............eeeveienees 192,294 - 192,294 - -
Accrued interest payable.........oeeieiiinnrennes - - - 68,013 -
Deferred credits and other liabilities..... - 46,402 46,402 - -
Total noncurrent liabilities.......... 1,820,415 5,426,655 7,247,070 769,802 -
Total HabiliIeS....c.veeerrerreerereerseenreierereese st 2,453,745 5,994,072 8,447,817 933,147 722
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt....................... 1,096,834 3,416,154 4,512,988 43,199 -
Restricted for:
Cash and emergencies requirements by Charter............... 55,139 - 55,139 - -
DEDLE SEIVICE. ... cverreeerieenereeeisritteans st eneens 9,996 242,537 252,533 139,969 -
Capital Projects.......cecereermrrmeresnsseescseenesns 48,313 128,387 176,700 - -
Community development..........coeoeeeeeneienes 163,875 - 163,875 - -
Transportation Authority activities. 135,466 - 135,466 - -
Other PUIPOSES...ccveuerveirririarinsesnsesssaseesseesisssassesssesanass 122,265 61,241 183,506 13,986 1,995
Unrestricted (defiCit)........ccoovrmneniminrsiennsneniiiinnnes et (325,147) 464,658 139,511 (249,368) -
Total net assets (AefiCit)......c.ccevmeimninninicniiiiiens $1,306,741 $ 4,312,977 § 5619718 § (52,214) $ 1,995

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Statement of Activities
Year ended June 30, 2004

(In Thousands)

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Assets

Component Units

Program Revenues Primary Government San Francisco Treasure
Charges Operating Capital Govern- Business- Redevelop- Island
for Grants and Grants and mental Type ment Development
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Agency Authority
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
Public protection...........ccccueue. $ 727580 $ 40,349 $ 105,315 $ - § (581,916) $ - % (581,916) $ - $ -
Public works, transportation
and COMMErCe............ccoeueuenees 169,179 83,176 20,244 30,134 (35,625) - (35,625) - -
Human welfare and
neighborhood development... 651,250 23,931 434,980 - (192,339) - (192,339) - -
Community health................... 517,066 38,933 259,164 - (218,969) - (218,969) - -
Culture and recreation............. 232,187 53,369 1,301 9,075 (168,442) - (168,442) - -
General administration and
finance 183,258 43,585 2,116 - (137,557) - (137,557) - -
General City responsibilities.... 73,530 59,609 664 - (13,257) - (13,257) - -
Unallocated Interest on
long-term debt..........ccoeevrunn 86,131 - - - (86,131) - (86,131) - -
Total governmental
ACHVItIeS....ccvcrenicriierenna 2,640,181 342,952 823,784 39,209 (1,434,236) - (1,434,236) - -
Business-type activities:
Airport. 618,301 486,132 - 27,404 - (104,765) (104,765) - -
Transportation............ccceeeeennne 660,650 186,390 95,698 64,669 - (313,893) (313,893) - -
Port 61,185 56,702 - 2,745 - (1,738) (1,738) - -
Water. 206,211 168,260 - - - (37,951) (37,951) - -
POWET.....c.cteeeetereeeverriiniereninne 121,629 124,474 6,123 - - 8,968 8,968 - -
Hospitals 562,188 453,607 66,620 - - (41,961) (41,961) - -
Sewer. 150,586 137,806 1,326 - - (11,454) (11,454) - -
Market 949 1,413 - - - 464 464 - -
Total business-type
activities........occeeveveecciiennenns 2,381,699 1,614,784 169,767 94,818 - (502,330) (502,330) - -
Total primary government............ $ 5,021,880 $ 1,957,736 $ 993,551 $ 134,027 (1,434,236) (502,330) _(1,936,566) - -
Component units:
San Francisco Redevelopment
AGENCY...veenereneeneerniniensiienrneas $ 117,264 $ 22,133 $ 14,271 $ - (80,860) -
Treasure Island Development
AUNOTItY.....coveererenenincceeeieees 11,035 8,270 - - - (2,765)
Total component units................. $ 128299 $ 30403 $ 14271 $ - (80,860) (2,765)
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes........cccouernireeemiessniaesesenennns 723,786 - 723,786 40,157 -
Business taxes 264,832 - 264,832 - -
Other local taxes 509,455 - 509,455 5,794 -
Interest and investment income..... 11,856 17,620 29,476 9,690 -
OFhET...cecveeeeeieree ettt senbe s 170,163 237,692 407,855 17,119 -
Special item - 9,245 9,245 - -
Transfers - internal activities of primary government.............. (251,937) 251,937 - - -
Total general revenues, special item, and transfers.... 1,428,155 516,494 1,944,649 72,760 -
Change in net assets (6,081) 14,164 8,083 (8,100) (2,765)
Net assets (deficit) - beginning 1,312,822 4,298,813 5,611,635 (44,114) 4,760
Net assets (deficit) - ending $1,306,741 $4,312,977 $5619,718 § (52214) § 1,995

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

26



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2004
(with comparative financial information as of June 30, 2003)

(In Thousands)

Other Total
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
ASSETS
Deposits and investments with City Treasury................ $ 158,248 $ 137,738 $ 564,795 $ 567,264 § 723,043 $ 705,002
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury........... 361 4,149 74,065 126,034 74,426 130,183
Receivables:
Property taxes and penalties..........cccouevemrurecinnnnnnn. 28,020 25,455 6,575 5,294 34,595 30,749
Other local taxes......c..cceoeeveereervenns PR 150,856 149,138 12,161 11,277 163,017 160,415
Federal and state grants and subventions 63,002 50,119 98,840 169,963 161,842 220,082
Charges for SEIVICES........cevreereriirnnesiiiisreneesssanees 7,568 11,356 6,163 6,685 13,731 18,041
Interest and Other.........coucveevereeeieccrcereeeerecesssseveeens 2,230 4,469 1,917 3,201 4,147 7,670
Due from other funds .........ccceevrvceneinnnenenienieensencecnnns 52,917 72,730 5,384 9,665 58,301 82,395
Due from component unit ........ccccoeveiniiniieniineeeeennnenes 849 444 - 11,276 849 11,720
Loans receivable (net of allowance for uncollectible
amount of $173,367 in 2004; $183,424 in 2003)....... 1,221 1,043 213,429 197,923 214,650 198,966
Deferred charges and other assets........cccecevneeieennenn. 6,598 6,224 1,625 1,832 8,223 8,056
Total @SSetS..c.uiceeereerrerscreresenescnre s $ 471,870 $ 462,865 $ 984,954 $1,110,414 § 1,456,824 $ 1,573,279
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable................ $ 8393 $ 70157 $ 58,894 $ 61,628 $§ 142828 $§ 131,785
Accrued Payroll........ccceeeeeecricninienseniscsininesensnenaseeeas 34,278 70,902 7,068 14,998 41,346 85,900
Deferred tax, grant and subvention revenues............. 30,151 28,622 31,620 11,743 61,771 40,365
Due to other funds.........coccevceieviecinniinnnicniisinienee e 892 700 88,969 115,105 89,861 115,805
Agency obligations..........c.ccvviiiiienenieneneeee e - - 138 40 138 40
Deferred credits and other liabilities..........cccceeveennen. 112,180 96,172 241,126 219,874 353,306 316,046
Bonds, loans, capital leases, and other payables...... - - 50,000 - 50,000 -
Total iabilities......cccveureeerereecrrereerreerreeeeseseenas 261,435 266,553 477,815 423,388 739,250 689,941
Fund balances:
Reserved for cash requirements..........cccoceeeeiiennnnns - 55,139 - - - 55,139
Reserved for rainy day.... 55,139 - - - 55,139 -
Reserved for emergencies - 4,198 - - - 4,198
Reserved for assets not available for appropriation.... 7,142 6,768 17,443 25,906 24,585 32,674
Reserved for debt service.......c.ccoeeinnviniciincciecnnnenn. - - 18,800 33,866 18,800 33,866
Reserved for encumbrances 42,501 43,195 142,784 278,656 185,285 321,851
Reserved for appropriation carryforward...........c........ 35,754 26,880 287,690 227,818 323,444 254,698
Reserved for subsequent years' budgets................... 6,242 15,414 8,005 8,004 14,247 23,418
Unreserved (deficit), reported in:
General fund......cccoceeeeeeverenenceieeeee e, 63,657 44,718 - - 63,657 44,718
Special revenue funds..... - - 19,043 67,988 19,043 67,988
Capital project funds.... - - 10,048 40,561 10,048 40,561
Permanent fund...........coccoviieiieieiceeeieineec e - - 3,326 4,227 3,326 4,227
Total fund balances........cceecivvererceerienisniieeens 210,435 196,312 507,139 687,026 717,574 883,338
Total liabilities and fund balances.................... $ 471,870 $ 462,865 $ 984,954 $1,110,414 § 1,456,824 §$ 1,573,279

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City and County of San Francisco
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2004

(In Thousands)

Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 717,574

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different
because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,

therefore, are not reported in the funds. 2,311,608
Bond issue costs are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in

the funds. 8,909
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the

current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. (1,796,201)

Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in the funds, but rather is recognized as
an expenditure when due. (6,199)

Because the focus of governmental funds is on short-term financing, some assets
will not be available to pay for current period expenditures. Those assets are :
offset by deferred revenue in the funds. 290,556

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of capital lease
financing, fleet management, printing and mailing services, and information
systems to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of internal service

funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets. (219,506)
Net assets of governmental activities $ 1,306,741

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

Year ended June 30, 2004
(with comparative financial information for the year ended June 30, 2003)

(In Thousands)

Other Total
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Revenues:
ProOperty taXes........c.coetreetreruesieeresiinieneeense s et $ 547,819 $ 516,955 §$ 173618 $ 169,199 §$ 721437 $ 686,154
BUSINESS TAXES........ccviviererireeeceeseesiestete s srebess s senssnens 264,351 276,126 481 525 264,832 276,651
Other local taxes.........ccceccevercnnnnns - 403,549 345,735 105,906 104,942 509,455 450,677
Licenses, permits and franchises... 17,501 16,217 6,287 5,431 23,788 21,648
Fines, forfeitures and penalties..........cccooooeininininninineinnes 22,158 5,595 3,025 3,405 25,183 9,000
Interest and investment income.................... . 3,222 7,798 8,408 17,772 11,630 25,570
Rents and concessions..........c.coeeeviennieenens 17,497 17,576 41,482 37,793 58,979 55,369
Intergovernmental:
FOUETAL.....ee vttt ettt ettt 163,047 151,790 181,108 168,464 344,155 320,254
State...eiieceeeeeeee e 3 497,196 515,382 133,757 174,889 630,953 690,271
Other...cceeceiereeeeeeeeeeee - - 18,259 24,623 18,259 24,623
Charges for services...........cccuuu.n. . 95,951 93,840 121,696 128,043 217,647 221,883
(01371 SOOI 29,564 11,880 27,580 15,212 57,144 27,092
Total revenues........cccccocererevcunennns . ... 2,061,855 1,958,894 821,607 850,298 2,883,462 2,809,192
Expenditures:
Current:
Public protection............c.cecvveeuirciuininnniniennnens 670,729 695,693 36,029 39,118 706,758 734,811
Public works, transportation and commerce...............ceeuenee 58,711 57,458 106,844 140,307 165,555 197,765
Human welfare and neighborhood development... 489,001 492,083 173,947 178,587 662,948 670,670
Community health............coccoviivniiniinenie 413,725 424,302 99,189 100,469 512,914 524,771
Culture and recreation...........cccceeceeereeeseneersseesmesnenssesneseans 92,978 96,959 180,185 155,518 273,163 ° 252,477
General administration and finance............ccccocoovnieiiecnnnen. 128,135 130,786 25,574 32,962 163,709 163,748
General City responsibilities..............cccouueu... ‘ 74,257 52,308 366 1,015 74,623 53,323
Debt service:
Principal retirement...........ccccoeeeereevincnenniiniinnnneeeessesienes - - 78,831 100,902 78,831 100,902
Interest and fiscal charges.................... - - 61,886 64,243 61,886 64,243
Bond issuance costs........ 374 - 976 1,646 1,350 1,646
Capital OULIAY........coovveeerrerieeciiii e - - 165,872 248,928 165,872 248,928
Total eXpenditures..........cccevereeeriereercrnninrenienesseseeas 1,927,910 1,949,589 929,699 1,063,695 2,857,609 3,013,284
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures...... 133,945 9,305 (108,092) (213,397) 25,853 (204,092)
Other financing sources (uses):
TrANSTErS iN....cveeieieccretee ettt snes s 121,491 105,211 83,169 121,309 204,660 226,520
Transfers OUL........ccoeveveieeneereeieeteeee e (277,316)  (303,216) (179,536) (189,989) (456,852) (493,205)
Issuance of bonds and loans ,
Face value of bonds issued.........coocceeveveeeenceiiiiiininenniecnns 29,480 - 87,165 71,310 116,645 71,310
Face value of loans issued......... - - 2,156 - 2,156 -
Premium on issuance of bonds............ 358 - 1,053 323 1,411 323
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent - - (65,802) - (65,802) -
Other financing sources-capital leases............ 6,165 3,686 - 28,899 6,165 32,585
(0] 11 =1 OO OUROTRPPRRR - 935 - - - 935
Total other financing sources (USES).........ccoeeeveeerene (119,822)  (193,384) (71,795) 31,852 (191,617) (161,532)
Net change in fund balances...........ccccocooveievenrecininennns 14,123 (184,079) (179,887) (181,545) (165,764) (365,624)
Fund balances at beginning of year..........ccccccccvvrmininieniciienenen, 196,312 380,391 687,026 868,571 883,338 1,248,962
Fund balances at end of Year...........ccoeveeveeeerreireniniesinninieinnnns $ 210435 $ 196,312 §$ 507,139 $ 687,026 §$ 717,574 § 883,338

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City and County of San Francisco

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
Year ended June 30, 2004

(In Thousands)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (165,764)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period. 106,037

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. This is the amount by
which the increase in certain liabilities reported in the statement of net assets of the previous year
exceeded expenses reported in the statement of activities that do not require the use of current

financial resources. (39,293)

Property tax revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are
not reported as revenues in the funds. 2,349

Governmental funds report expenditures pertaining to the establishment of certain deferred credits related
to long-term loans made. These deferred credits are not reported on the statement of net assets and,
therefore, the corresponding expense is not reported on the statement of activities. 37,657

Lease payments on the Moscone Convention Center (including both principal and interest) are reported
as expenditures in the governmental funds when paid. For the City as a whole, however, the principal
portion of the payments serve to reduce the liability in the statement of net assets. This is the amount
of property rent payments expended in the governmental funds in the current period. 35,734

Bond issue costs are reported in the governmental funds when paid, and are capitalized and amortized
in the statement of activities. This is the amount by which current year bond issue costs exceed
amortization expense in the current period. 913

The issuance of long-term debt and capital leases provides current financial resources to governmental
funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt and capital leases consume the current
financial resources of governmental funds. These transactions, however, have no effect on net assets.
This is the amount by which principal retirement in the current period exceeded bond and other debt

proceeds. 25,832

Bond premiums and discounts are expended in the governmental funds when the bonds are issued, and
are capitalized and amortized in the statement of net assets. This is the net amount of bond premiums
capitalized during the current period. (1,411)

Interest expense in the statement of activities differs from the amount reported in the governmental funds
because of additional accrued and accreted interest; amortization of bond discounts, premiums and
refunding losses; and change in the accrual of arbitrage liabilities. (18,778)

The net revenues of certain activities of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities. 10,643

Changes in net assets of governmental activities $ (6,081)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Budgetary Comparison Statement - General Fund
Year ended June 30, 2004
(In Thousands)

Budgetary fund balance, July 1
Resources (inflows):
Property taxes........ccocovvirmrieenieinnene e
Business taxes..........coccerueennee

Other local taxes:

SAIES 1AX....uvueeerrrrreeeeerirereeere s e e et e raa e st aanes

Hotel room tax......c..ccocuveeen
Utility users tax.

Parking taX.......coccveereeneeiniiniinicnie et
Other 10Cal taXes.........ceeveieeveeieriiiiiieneriree e

Licenses, permits, and franchises:

Licenses and permits........ccoueiviireeiimniinneinieectns

FranChiSe taX........cueeeveereeereneeennneeresensniesinres s ssesssesssaessnes
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties...........
Interest and investment income
Rents and concessions:

Garages - Recreation and Park............cocevvenceiinicninn

Rents and concessions - Recreation and Park...
Other rents and concessions

Intergovernmental:
Federal subventions:
Health and social service subventions...........c.cccceeueueenies
Other grants and subventions.............cceveeeneeenee.
State subventions:
Social service subventions................ccc.....

Health and welfare realignment.............ccoooovviinnnniean.
Health/mental health subventions......................

Public safety sales tax...................
Motor vehicle in-lieu - county...

Other grants & subventions............ccocevevenininininnnnns

Charges for services:

General government service charges............coccevveneerieinnn
Public safety service charges...........ccoceeeeeienimnineniccnneennen
Recreation charges - Recreation and Park...........c.cccceeencene

MediCal, MediCare and health service charges...................
Other financing sources:

Transfers from other funds.........ccccceeeiimieniinnieenieniceinniennns

Proceeds from issuance of bonds and loans

Other resources (iNflOWS).......c.ccccoircuiiiniinninieeienieeneseee s
Total amounts available for appropriation............cceceueueee.

31

Actual Variance

Original Final Budgetary Positive

Budget Budget Basis (Negative)
58,483 $ 207,167 $ 207,167 $ -
527,744 527,767 546,812 19,045
288,619 288,619 264,351 (24,268)
122,510 122,510 120,642 (1,868)
90,052 90,052 98,457 8,405
68,360 68,360 70,938 2,578
32,655 32,655 31,994 (661)
57,674 57,674 81,518 23,844
6,054 6,054 5,408 (646)
11,020 11,020 12,093 1,073
31,681 31,843 29,731 (2,112)
12,511 12,579 7,593 (4,986)
7,744 7,044 6,978 (66)
11,949 11,949 10,199 (1,750)
322 323 320 3)
154,137 156,847 153,352 (3,495)
2,777 2,989 9,695 6,706
101,616 104,374 97,684 (6,690)
94,324 95,338 95,987 649
132,558 132,558 137,701 5,143
65,320 65,320 64,158 (1,162)
82,610 82,610 84,627 2,017
23,872 23,961 17,039 (6,922)
35,274 35,853 35,276 (577)
15,935 16,146 15,066 (1,080)
5,365 5,366 5,446 80
49,990 50,482 39,818 (10,664)
142,728 150,354 121,513 (28,841)
1,625 31,207 30,486 (721)
19,251 19,296 26,464 7,168
$ 2,254,760 $ 2,448,317 $2,428,513 $ (19,804)
(Continued)



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Budgetary Comparison Statement - General Fund (Continued)
Year ended June 30, 2004

(In Thousands)

Actual Variance
Original Final Budgetary Positive
Budget Budget Basis (Negative)
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Public Protection
Administrative Services - Animal Care and Control.............. $ 2,999 $ 3,105 $ 3,105 § -
Administrative Services - Consumer Assurance................... 1,405 1,409 1,409 -
Administrative Services - Medical Examiner.................. 4,140 4,162 4,162 -
AdUlt Probation...........cceceevierenenceieecniee e 8,863 9,023 9,023 -
District Attorney.............. . 23,244 24,112 24,073 39
Fire Department............. 196,077 199,369 198,274 1,095
Juvenile Probation . 28,732 29,472 29,447 25
Mayor - Office of the Emergency Services............c.cocveeuenne - 57 57 -
Police Department...........c.ccveueerieiereimniissseescse e 245,979 253,826 253,816 10
Public Defender.........cccerveeriererienieniciiceneesseenaeens . 15,455 15,451 15,262 189
SREH ... cveieveeerereereeeete et . 92,449 194,605 94,239 366
Trial CoumS...ccveeeeenecereecee s 33,887 34,281 34,267 14
Public Works Transportation and Commerce
Board of Appeals......c..ccecuveennnnnne 455 456 418 38
Business and Economic Development. 1,366 1,622 1,586 36
Clean Water........cccccoevveriuennns 196 279 212 67
Department of Public WOrKS..........cccooiieieenincieecnncne, 28,841 30,933 30,211 722
Emergency Communications et . 26,252 25,487 23,550 1,937
Telecommunications and Information Services ................... 1,746 1,690 1,487 203
Human Welfare and Neighborhood Development
Adult and Aging SErVICES.........cccueeueirinininineneeniesssnsesieeene 21,542 22,305 20,274 2,031
Children, Youth and Their Families... 10,636 11,148 11,058 90
Commission on the Status of Women . 2,415 2,401 2,341 60
Environment 454 2,831 2,713 118
Human Rights COMMISSION..........cccuvveeieiinnininiininenseneeene 1,572 1,730 1,670 60
Human Services........cccecueeennnen. 471,802 467,323 450,944 16,379
Rent Arbitration Board.........cc.cccoceeviiniennnninennnn. - 2 2 -
PUDC HEAIN. ... ceteeieecrteeteeee ettt 444,849 445,236 413,699 31,537
Culture and Recreation
Academy of Sciences 1,899 1,899 1,856 43
Art COmMmMISSION.......ccccueeeriicnneriennes 6,122 5,843 5,807 36
Asian Art Museum. rereeeeere e . 6,106 6,027 6,027 -
County Education Office........ . 68 68 68 -
Fine ArtS MUSEBUM......ccceveerreiciriic et 4,565 4,616 4,616 -
Law Library........... et eeterr e eeeereetast et ne et ne 513 510 489 21
Administrative Services - Grants for the Arts 14,322 14,073 14,060 13
Recreation and Park COmMmISSION..........covvvvierimieiniecennens 60,563 59,981 58,828 1,153
General Administration and Finance
Administrative Services..... SO 11,929 12,349 12,349 -
Assessor/Recorder......... 8,988 8,976 8,308 668
Board of SUPEIVISOTS..........ccovuivinrinireieinieiese e, 9,224 8,743 8,743 -
(Continued)
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Budgetary Comparison Statement - General Fund (Continued)

Year ended June 30, 2004
(In Thousands)
Actual Variance
Original Final Budgetary Positive
Budget Budget Basis (Negative)
City Attorney... ettt ese b 7,139 8,228 8,228 -
City Planning.. 11,939 13,649 12,274 1,375
CiVil SIVICE......ueeveieeeeeeriereeereereter et sre b s s sssene 524 543 543 -
CONMIOET ... eevectieeeeitereie et se e 19,828 19,722 19,569 153
EIECHONS. ....cveeeeectieeeeicrteteste ettt 13,444 16,152 15,205 947
Ethics COMMISSION........covierieeeeeniiiiicie e, 910 902 867 35
16,271 17,164 17,164 -
6,395 7,027 6,891 136
385 392 392 -
17,792 18,112 17,476 636
General City Responsibilities
General City Responsibilities...........cccoeveviimnininisncien, 46,642 83,212 83,200 12
Other financing uses:
DEDbt SEIVICE.......eeeeieiieieieeieenese et 218 194 109 85
Transfers to other funds.........cccccoeviviiiniincniienieeeee 285,206 292,664 275,534 17,130
Budgetary reserves and designations 38,412 9,301 - 9,301
Total charges to appropriations............ccoeeeeriinieneeennneens 2,254,760 2,292,662 2,205,902 86,760
Available before designations..............cccceeeevurecrennnnen. . $ - $ 155,655 $ 222,611 66,956
Increase to designations (11,950)
Budgetary fund balance available for appropriation, June 30 $ 55,006
Explanation of differences between budgetary inflows and outflows,
and GAAP revenues and expenditures:
Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "available for appropriation” ..............ccoevvcveniniiiniininnenn. $2,428,513
Difference - budget to GAAP:
The fund balance at the beginning of the year is a budgetary resource but is not
a current year revenue for financial reporting purposes...........cc.cccoeuiieiniinne (207,167)
Property tax revenue - Teeter Plan............ooooiiiiiiee 1,007
Unrealized loss on investment..............cccoveeenine (4,371)
Interest reclassified as transfers from other funds... 2,188
Proceeds from issuance of bonds and l0ans...........ccooceeiiieeeiiencnnniieee et (30,486)
Operating transfers out greater under GAAP...... 1,782
Other budget to GAAP differences............ovemiirininiininn (8,098)
Transfers from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources but are not
revenues for financial reporting PUMPOSES..........ccuerueeierieinisienen st (121,513)
Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes
in fund balances - governmental funds..............cooriininn $2,061,855
Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total charges to appropriations” ..................... $2,205,902
Difference - budget to GAAP:
Capital asset purchases funded under capital leases
With Finance Corporation...........c.e..vviieiiniiirrmmiiiesrsn ettt (6,165)
Other budget to GAAP differences erereeeeeeeeseeeeateeereessat e e s e e e e anaeeerares (1,467)
Operating transfers in greater under GAAP...........ccccoviniiiiiii 8,551
Pension reimbursement and Others...........coceeiuiiiiiiiicinee e 8,573
Change recognized in budget basis reserves. ..o (11,950)
Transfers to other funds are outflows of budgetary resources but are not
expenditures for financial reporting PUrPOSES...........coeueeerimeiiiiininii s (275,534)
Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes
in fund balances - governmental funds............c..ooiiiniin e $1,927,910
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2004

(In Thousands)

Pension
and Other
Employee Investment
Benefit Trust Trust Agency
Funds Fund Funds

ASSETS
Deposits and investments with City Treasury.......c.eeeerereneccnnnninncnnecssissscnseene $ 87,187 $ 206,091 $ 99,307
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury........coeeveeeeeinininiiniinnnieiennens 12,421,630 - -
Receivables:

Payroll CONIDULION. ......c.ccrrereereiriitie ettt 8,533 - 25,461

INtErESt ANA OtNEN......eeeveereeeeeeeeeeere ettt s ettt 139,216 472 90,284
Invested securities lending collateral..........ccoovviiimecinenie e 1,356,618 - -
Deferred charges and Other @ssets.........covveeveniinininsnsneesn e 584 - 25,658

TOtAl @SSELS..ccvviereriereerirreersnrereresrnreeseseesse st es e st s nebs s s ba e e s e s sa s ssne s sessnatass 14,013,768 206,563 $ 240,710
Liabilities
Accounts payable..........ccoceevieiiinneineinnnns . 17,077 1,446 43,224
Estimated claims payable........cccccocveimmiiniiemnncnnenrcc 14,547 - -
Agency obligations reeerereeenerreeeeas - - 197,486
Obligations under fixed coupon dollar reverse repurchase agreements..................... 199,000 - -
Payable 10 BroKers........cccuvvevrernnirssnmninnnsnssinsestennnns . 446,432 - -
Securities lending collateral... . rereeesneeneaans 1,356,618 - -
Deferred credits and other liabilities.........cccoeeemnreicceccnenne 31,360 - -
TOtal [ADIHES....c.eeerreereerreneerireereeseressatise st isseesisaesre st e s nssnsene st se e snesans 2,065,034 1,446 § 240,710

Net Assets
Held in trust for pension and other employee benefits and external pool participants ~ $ 11,948,734 $ 205,117

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
Year ended June 30, 2004

(In Thousands)

Pension
and Other
Employee Investment
Benefit Trust Trust
Funds Fund
Additions:
Employees’ CONtMIDULONS. ........oeeruetemrmsiicisiseiist st $ 227,659 $ -
Employer contributions........ceeeieseemeniiinninnnensiaenns 345,381 -
Contributions to pooled investments - 2,086,500
Total CONtribULIONS....cueiireeeieiriiirierireseterst et eesianes . 573,040 2,086,500
Investment income:
INEEIES L. eveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeessareeessssasseseseeesstesssssasassaseasassesssssesssasssessesannns 162,377 1,728
Dividends eeeeteesereseeesaeeesnessaeesestesasaneasnrraen 95,691 -
Net increase in fair value of investments........ccvviiviieccninincinninnenns 1,469,998 -
SECUIIES 1ENING INCOME. ....vververererrrcesresasersessssssssssenssassssssssssssssssesss 15,391 -
Fixed coupon dollar reverse repurchase agreement income................ 3,083 -
Total investment iNCOME .......cccverrricinrerinniinsseeesssntsiseniinnnen 1,746,540 1,728
Less investment expenses:
Securities lending borrower rebates and eXpenses.............ccceeeueenens (8,786) -
Fixed coupon dollar reverse repurchase finance charges and exper (1,928) -
Other expenses........c........ (24,700) -
Total investment expenses rerteeresseeeeeseeesatasentesesesarranaaes (35,414) C -
Total additioNS, NEL.....ccvveeerrniriiiiierreer et nennee 2,284,166 2,088,228
Deductions:
Benefit payments........ccceeeneees . iererereeesnertese e s aneaanes 887,970 -
Refunds of CONtHDULIONS.......c.ceeeriereciriniriiinsr s 7,935 -
Distribution from pooled INVeStMENtS........cccoceeiiiiniiiiniiiieeieens - 2,117,068
Administrative expenses......... . reeeerreeeennes et 10,710 -
Total deductions............... ereeeeeeseeeaeesreeteseteeasraaeens 906,615 2,117,068
Change in Net @SSetS.......oouiererrnesnri e 1,377,551 (28,840)
Net assets at beginning of year. 10,571,183 233,957
Net aSSets at €Nd O YEAN...c.covreeerecriiniresrnnssesseeses e ssssans $ 11,948,734 $ 205,117

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2004

THE FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

San Francisco is a city and county chartered by the State of California and as such can exercise the
powers as both a city and a county under state law. As required by generally accepted accounting
principles, the accompanying financial statements present the City and County of San Francisco (the City
or Primary Government) and its component units. The component units discussed below are included in
the City’s reporting entity because of the significance of their operations or financial relationships with the
City.

As a government agency, the City is exempt from both federal income taxes and California State
franchise taxes.

Blended Component Units

Following is a description of those legally separate component units for which the City is financially
accountable that are blended with the Primary Government because of their individual governance or

financial relationships to the City.

San Francisco County Transportation Authority (Authority) - The Authority was created in 1989 by the
voters of the City to impose a voter-approved sales and use tax of one-half of one percent to fund
essential traffic and transportation projects. A Board consisting of the eleven members of the City's Board
of Supervisors serving ex officio governs the Authority. The operations of the Authority are reported within
other governmental funds. Financial statements for the Authority can be obtained from the Authority’s
administrative offices at 100 Van Ness Avenue, San Francisco, CA 94102.

San Francisco Finance Corporation (Finance Corporation) - The Finance Corporation was created in
1990 by a vote of the electorate to allow the City to lease-purchase $20 million (plus 5% per year growth)
of equipment using tax-exempt obligations. ~Although legally separate from the City, the Finance
Corporation is reported as if it were part of the primary government because its sole purpose is to provide
lease financing to the City. The Finance Corporation is reported as an internal service fund. Financial
statements for the Finance Corporation can be obtained from the Finance Corporation’s administrative
offices at City Hall, Room 336, #1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, San Francisco, CA 94102.

San Francisco Parking Authority (Parking Authority) — The Parking Authority was created in October 1949
to provide services exclusively to the City. In accordance with Proposition D authorized by the City's
electorate in November 1988, a City Charter amendment created the Parking and Traffic Commission
(DPT). The DPT consists of five commissioners appointed by the mayor. Upon creation of the DPT, the
responsibility to oversee the City's off-street parking operations was transferred from the Parking
Authority to the DPT. The staff and fiscal operations of the Parking Authority were also incorporated into
the DPT. Beginning on July 1, 2002, the responsibility for overseeing the operations of the DPT became
the responsibility of the Municipal Transportation Agency (MTA) pursuant to Proposition E which was
passed by the voters in November 1999. Separate financial statements are not prepared for the Parking
Authority. Further information about the Parking Authority can be obtained from the Parking Authority's
administrative offices at 25 Van Ness Avenue, San Francisco, CA 94102.

Discretely Presented Component Units

San Francisco Redevelopment Agency (Agency) - The Agency is a public body, corporate and politic,
organized and existing under the Community Redevelopment Law of the State of California. Seven
commissioners who are appointed by the Mayor, subject to confirmation by the City's Board of
Supervisors, govern it. The Agency has adopted as its mission the creation of affordable housing and -
economic development opportunities Citywide. Included in its financial data are the accounts of the San
Francisco Redevelopment Financing Authority (SFRFA), a component unit of the Agency. The SFRFA is

a separate joint-powers authority formed between the Agency and the City to facilitate the long-term

financing of Agency activities. The Agency’s governing commission serves as the Board of Directors of

the SFRFA.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2004

In Fiscal Year 2002, the Public Initiatives Development Corporation (PIDC) was formed to develop
affordable housing on the Agency's behalf. The Board of PIDC is comprised of management of the
Agency and other appointed individuals. Future funding will be dependent on the Agency and as such,
PIDC is reported as a blended component unit of the Agency. Activities during the year are
predevelopment activities including design and financing of a 106 affordable units mixed-use
development.

The Agency’s governing body is not substantively the same as that of the City, and the Agency does not
provide services entirely or almost entirely to the City. The Agency is reported in a separate column to
emphasize that it is legally separate from the City. The City is financially accountable for the Agency
through the appointment of the Agency’s Board and the ability of the City to approve the Agency’s budget.
Disclosures related to the Agency, where significant, are identified separately throughout these notes.
Complete financial statements can be obtained from the Agency's administrative offices at
770 Golden Gate Avenue, San Francisco, CA 94102.

Treasure Island Development Authority (TIDA) — The TIDA is a nonprofit public benefit corporation. The
TIDA was authorized in accordance with the Treasure Island Conversion Act of 1997 and designated as a
redevelopment agency pursuant to Community Redevelopment Law of the State of California. Seven
commissioners who are appointed by the Mayor, subject to confirmation by the City's Board of
Supervisors, govern the TIDA. The specific purpose of the TIDA is to promote the planning,
redevelopment, reconstruction, rehabilitation, reuse and conversion of the property known as Naval
Station Treasure Island for the public interest, convenience, welfare and common benefit of the
inhabitants of the City. The TIDA has adopted as its mission the creation of affordable housing and
economic development opportunities on Treasure Island.

The TIDA’s governing body is not substantively the same as that of the City and the TIDA does not
provide services entirely or almost entirely to the City. The TIDA is reported in a separate column to
emphasize that it is legally separate from the City. The City is financially accountable for the TIDA through
the appointment of the TIDA’s Board and the ability of the City to approve the TIDA's budget. Disclosures
related to the TIDA, where significant, are separately identified throughout these notes. Separate financial
statements are not prepared for TIDA. Further information about TIDA can be obtained from the TIDA
administrative offices at 410 Palm Avenue, Building 1, Room 223, Treasure Island, San Francisco, CA

94130.

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 39, Determining Whether
Certain Organizations Are Component Units, the City evaluated potential component units and
determined that none of the potential component units were individually significant to the City’s reporting

entity.

Non Disclosed Organizations

There are other governmental agencies that provide services within the City. These entities have
independent governing boards and the City is not financially accountable for them. The City’s basic
financial statements, except for certain cash held by the City as an agent, do not reflect operations of the
San Francisco Airport Improvement Corporation, San Francisco Health Authority, San Francisco Housing
Authority, Private Industry Council of San Francisco, San Francisco Unified School District and San
Francisco Community College District. The City is represented in two regional agencies, the Bay Area
Rapid Transit District (BART) and the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQM), which are also
excluded from the City’s reporting entity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of changes
in net assets) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities which rely, to a significant extent, on fees
and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally
separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in
the fund financial statements.

The basic financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information. This
information is presented only to facilitate financial analysis.

(b) Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for
which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The City considers
property tax revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal
period. All other revenues are considered to be available if they are generally collected within 120 days of .
the end of the current fiscal period. It is the City’s policy to submit reimbursement and claim requests for
federal and state grant revenues within 30 days of the end of the program cycle and payment is generally
received within the first or second quarter of the following fiscal year. Expenditures generally are recorded
when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to vacation, sick leave, claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is
due.

Property taxes, other local taxes, grants and subventions, licenses, and interest associated with the
current fiscal period are all considered susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues
of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only
when the City receives cash.
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The City reports the following major governmental fund:

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
City except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The City reports the following major proprietary (enterprise) funds:

The San Francisco International Airport Fund accounts for the activities of the City-owned
commercial service airport in the San Francisco Bay Area. :

The Water Department Fund accounts for the activities of the San Francisco Water Department.
The department is engaged in the distribution of water to the City and certain suburban areas.

The Hetch Hetchy Water and Power Fund accounts for the activities of Hetch Hetchy Water and
Power Department (Hetch Hetchy). The department is engaged in the collection and conveyance of
approximately 85% of the City’s water supply and in the generation and transmission of electricity.

The Municipal Transportation Agency Fund accounts for the activities of the Municipal
Transportation Agency (MTA). The MTA was established by Proposition E, passed by the City's
voters in November 1999. The MTA includes the San Francisco Municipal Railway (MUNI), San
Francisco Municipal Railway Improvement Corporation (SFMRIC), and beginning on July 1, 2002
the operations of the Parking and Traffic Commission (DPT), which includes the Parking Authority.
MUNI was established in 1912 and is responsible for the operations of the City's public
transportation system. SFMRIC is a nonprofit corporation established to provide capital financial
assistance for the modernization of MUNI by acquiring, constructing, and financing improvements
to the City’s public transportation system. DPT is responsible for proposing and implementing
street and traffic changes and oversees the City’s off-street parking operations. DPT is a separate
department of the MTA. The parking garages fund later accounted for the activities of various non-
profit corporations formed by the Parking Authority to provide financial and other assistance to the
City to acquire land, construct facilities, and manage various parking facilities.

The General Hospital Medical Center Fund accounts for the activities of the San Francisco
General Hospital Medical Center, a City-owned acute care hospital.

The Clean Water Program Fund accounts for the activities of the Clean Water Program (CWP). It
was created after the San Francisco voters approved a proposition in 1976, authorizing the City to
issue $240 million in bonds for the purpose of acquiring, construction, improving, and financing
improvements to the City municipal sewage treatment and disposal system.

The Port of San Francisco Fund accounts for the activities of the Port of San Francisco. This was
established in 1969 after the San Francisco voters approved a proposition to accept the transfer of
the Harbor of San Francisco from the State of California.

The Laguna Honda Hospital Fund accounts for the activities of Laguna Honda Hospital, the City-
owned skilled nursing facility which specializes in serving elderly and disabled residents.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

The Permanent Fund accounts for resources that are Iegaliy restricted to the extent that only
earnings, not principal, may be used for purposes that support specific programs.

The Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods or services provided by one City
department to another City department on a cost-reimbursement basis. Internal Service Funds
account for the activities of the equipment maintenance services, centralized printing and mailing
services, centralized telecommunications and information services, and lease financing through the
Finance Corporation.
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The Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds reflect the activities of the Employees’
Retirement System and the Health Service System. The Retirement System accounts for employee
contributions, City contributions, and the earnings and profits from investments. It also accounts for
the disbursements made for employee retirement benefits, withdrawals, disability and death
benefits as well as administrative expenses. The Health Service System accounts for contributions
from active and retired employees and surviving spouses, City contributions, and the earnings and
profits from investments. It also accounts for the disbursements to various health plans and health
care providers for the medical expenses of beneficiaries.

The Investment Trust Fund accounts for the external portion of the Treasurer's Office investment
pool. The funds of the San Francisco Community College District, San Francisco Unified School
District, and the Trial Courts are accounted for within the Investment Trust Fund.

The Agency Funds account for the resources held by the City in a custodial capacity on behalf of
other agencies.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent
- that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for
their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The City has elected
not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

In general, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this rule are charges to other City Departments from the Water Department and
Hetch Hetchy. These charges have not been eliminated because elimination would distort the direct
costs and program revenues reported in the Statement of Activities.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the fund’s principal
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City’s enterprise and internal service funds
are charges for customer services including: water, sewer and power charges, public transportation fees,
airline fees and charges, parking fees, hospital, patient service fees, commercial and industrial rents,
printing services, vehicle maintenance fees, and telecommunication and information system support
charges. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

(c) Budgetary Data

The City adopts annual budgets for all governmental funds on a substantially modified accrual basis of
accounting except for capital project funds and certain debt service funds which substantially adopt
project length budgets.

The budget of the City is a detailed operating plan, which identifies estimated costs and results in relation
to estimated revenues. The budget includes (1) the programs, projects, services, and activities to be
provided during the fiscal year, (2) the estimated resources (inflows) available for appropriation, and (3)
the estimated charges to appropriations. The budget represents a process through which policy decisions
are deliberated, implemented, and controlled. The City Charter prohibits expending funds for which there
is no legal appropriation.

The Administrative Code Chapter 3 outlines the City's general budgetary procedures, with Section 3.3
detailing the budget timeline. A summary of the key budgetary steps are summarized as follows:
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Original Budget

(1)

@)

©)

4)

®)

(6)

@)

Departments and Commissions conduct hearings to obtain public comment on their proposed
annual budgets beginning in December and submit their budget proposals to the Controller's Office
no later than February 21.

The Controller's Office consolidates the budget estimates and transmits them to the Mayor’s Office
no later than the first working day of March. Staff of the Mayor’s Office analyze, review and refine
the budget estimates before transmitting the Mayor's Proposed Budget to the Board of Supervisors.

By the first working day of May, the Mayor submits the Proposed Budget for selected departments
to the Board of Supervisors. The selected departments are determined by the Controller in
consultation with the Board President and the Mayor's Budget Director. Criteria for selecting the
departments include (1) that they are not supported by the City's General Fund or (2) that they do
not rely on the State’s budget submission in May for their revenue sources.

By the first working day of June, the Mayor submits the complete Proposed Budget to the Board of
Supervisors along with a draft of the Annual Appropriation Ordinance prepared by the Controller’s

Office.

Within five working days of the Mayor’s proposed budget transmission to the Board of Supervisors,
the Controller reviews the estimated revenues and assumptions in the Mayor's Proposed Budget
and provides an opinion as to their accuracy and reasonableness. The Controller also may make a
recommendation regarding prudent reserves given the Mayor's proposed resources and
expenditures. '

The designated Committee (usually the Budget Committee) of the Board of Supervisors conducts
hearings, hears public comment, and reviews the Mayor's Proposed Budget. The Committee
recommends an interim budget reflecting the Mayor's budget transmittal and, by June 30, the Board
of Supervisors passes an interim appropriation and salary ordinances.

Not later than the last working day of July, the Board of Supervisors adopts the budget through
passage of the Annual Appropriation Ordinance, the legal authority for enactment of the budget.

Final Budget

The final budgetary data presented in the basic financial statements reflects the following changes to the
original budget:

O

)

Certain annual appropriations are budgeted on a project or program basis. If such projects or
programs are not completed at the end of the fiscal year, unexpended appropriations, including
encumbered funds, are carried forward to the following year. In certain circumstances, other
programs and regular annual appropriations may be carried forward after appropriate approval.
Annually appropriated funds, not authorized to be carried forward, lapse at the end of the fiscal
year. Appropriations carried forward from the prior year are included in the final budgetary data.

Appropriations may be adjusted during the year with the approval of the Mayor and the Board of
Supervisors, e.g. supplemental appropriations. Additionally, the Controller is authorized to make
certain transfers of surplus appropriations within a department. Such adjustments are reflected in
the final budgetary data.

The Annual Appropriation Ordinance adopts the budget at the character level of expenditure within
departments. As described above, the Controller is authorized to make certain transfers of
appropriations within departments. Accordingly, the legal level of budgetary control by the Board of
Supervisors is the department level.
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Budgetary data, as revised, is presented in the basic financial statements for the General Fund.
Final budgetary data excludes the amount reserved for encumbrances for appropriate comparison
to actual expenditures.

Generally, new or one-time federal and state grants, other capital projects, and debt issues are
budgeted by the Mayor and the Board of Supervisors through a supplemental appropriation.

(d) Deposits and Investments

Investment in the Treasurer’s Pool

The Treasurer invests on behalf of most funds of the City and external participants in accordance with the
City’s investment policy and the California State Government Code. The City Treasurer who reports on a
monthly basis to the Board of Supervisors manages the Treasurer's pool. In addition, the function of the
County Treasury Oversight Committee is to review and monitor the City's investment policy and to
monitor compliance with the investment policy and reporting provisions of the law through an annual
audit.

The Treasurer’s investment pool consists of two components: 1) pooled deposits and investments and 2)
dedicated investment funds. The dedicated investment funds represent restricted funds and relate to
bond issuance of the Enterprise Funds and the General Fund’s cash reserve requirement. In addition to
the Treasurer's investment pool, the City has other funds that are held by trustees. These funds are
related to the issuance of bonds and certain loan programs of the City. The investments of the
Employees’ Retirement System and deposits and investments of the Redevelopment Agency are held by
trustees (note 5).

The San Francisco Unified School District, San Francisco Community College District, and the Trial
Courts of the State of California are voluntary participants in the City’s investment pool. As of
June 30, 2004, $205 million was held on behalf of these voluntary participants. The total percentage
share of the Treasurer's pool that relates to these three external participants is 9.23%. The deposits held
for these entities are included in the Investment Trust Fund. The City has not provided nor obtained any
legally binding guarantees during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 to support the value of shares in
the pool.

For reports on the external investment pool, contact the Office of the Treasurer, Room 140, City Hall, 1
Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, San Francisco, CA 94102.

Investment Valuation

Treasurer's Pool — Substantially all investments are carried at fair value. The fair value of pooled
investments is determined annually and is based on current market prices. The fair value of participants’
position in the pool is the same as the value of the pool shares. The method used to determine the value
of participants’ equity withdrawn is based on the book value of the participants’ percentage participation
at the date of such withdrawal. In the event that a certain fund overdraws its share of pooled cash, the
overdraft is reported as a due to the General Fund. Certain U.S. government securities that have a
remaining maturity at time of purchase of one year or less are carried at amortized cost, which
approximates market value.

Employees’ Retirement System (Retirement System) - Investments are reported at fair value. Securities
traded on national or international exchanges are valued at the last reported sales price at current
exchange rates. Investments that do not have an established market price are reported at estimated fair
value. Purchases and sales of investments are recorded on a trade date basis. The fair values of real
estate holdings are estimated primarily on appraisals prepared by third-party appraisers. The fair values
of venture capital investments are estimated based primarily on audited financial statements provided by
the individual fund managers. Such market value estimates involve subjective judgments, and the actual
market price of these investments can only be determined by negotiation between independent third
parties in a sales transaction.
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Investments in forward currency contract investments are commitments to purchase or sell stated
amounts of foreign currency. Changes in market value of open contracts are immediately recognized as
gains or losses. The market values of forward currency contracts are determined by quoted currency
prices from national exchanges. As of June 30, 2004, the fair value of open purchase contracts was
$839.2 million, offset by the fair value of open sales contracts of ($842.7) million for a net fair value of
($3.5) million. The Retirement System utilized contracts netting to $320.6 million to hedge (or decrease)
the currency risk of foreign investments or to settle trades, and contracts netting to $317.1 million to
increase investment exposure in foreign currencies beyond the amounts reported as international
investment securities or to settle trades. Additionally, contracts may be used to effectively cancel previous
contracts.

The City Charter and Retirement System Board (Board) policies permit the Retirement System to use
investments of the Retirement System’'s Pension Plan (the Plan) to enter into securities lending
transactions. These are loans of securities to broker-dealers and other entities for collateral, with a
simultaneous agreement to return collateral for the same securities in the future. The Retirement
System’s securities custodians are agents in lending the Plan’s securities for cash collateral of 102% for
domestic securities and 105% for international securities. Securities on loan at year-end are presented as
“non-categorized” in the schedule of custodial risk (note 5). As of June 30, 2004, the Retirement System
has no credit risk exposure to borrowers because the amounts the Retirement System owes the
borrowers exceed the amounts the borrowers owe the Retirement System. Contracts with the lending
agents require them to indemnify the Retirement System if the borrowers fail to return the securities (and
if the collateral were inadequate to replace the securities lent) or if the borrowers fail to pay the
Retirement System for income distributions by the securities issuers while the securities are on loan. Non
cash collateral cannot be pledged or sold uniess the borrower defauits.

Either the Retirement System or the borrower can terminate all securities loans on demand, although the
average term of the loans is fifty-three days. In lending domestic securities, cash collateral is invested in
the lending agent's short-term investment pool, which at year-end had a weighted-average maturity of
thirty-nine days. In lending international securities, cash collateral is invested in a separate short-term
investment pool, which at year-end had a weighted-average maturity of eighteen days. The relationship
between the maturities of the investment pools and the Retirement System'’s loans is affected by the
maturities of the securities loans made by other entities that use the agent's pool, which the Retirement
System cannot determine. Cash collateral may also be invested separately in term loans, in which case
the maturity of the loaned securities matches the term of the loan. Cash received as collateral on
securities lending transactions is reported as an asset, and liabilities from these transactions are reported
in the statement of net assets. Additionally, the costs of securities lending transactions, such as borrower
rebates and fees, are recorded as expenses.

The City Charter and Board policies permit the Retirement System to use investments to enter into fixed
coupon dollar repurchase agreements, that is, a sale of securities with a simultaneous agreement to
repurchase similar securities in the future at a lower price that reflects a financing rate. The fair value of
the securities underlying fixed coupon dollar repurchase agreements equals the cash received. If the
dealers default on their obligations to resell these securities to the Retirement System at the agreed buy
back price, the Retirement System could suffer an economic loss if the securities have to be purchased in
the open market at a price higher than the agreed-upon buy back price. This credit exposure at June 30,
2004 was approximately $2.3 million.

Other funds — Non-pooled investments are also generally carried at fair value. However, money market
investments (such as short term, highly liquid debt instruments including commercial paper, bankers’
acceptances, and U.S. Treasury and agency obligations), and participating interest-earning investment
contracts (such as negotiable certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements and guaranteed or bank
investment contracts) that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less are
carried at amortized cost, which approximates market value. The fair value of non-pooled investments is
determined annually and is based on current market prices. The fair value of investments in open-end
mutual funds is determined based on the fund’s current share price.
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Component Unit - San Francisco Redevelopment Agency - Investments are stated at fair value except for
money market investments with maturities of one year or less which have been stated at amortized cost.
The fair value of investments has been obtained by using market quotes as of June 30, 2004.

Investment Income

Income from pooled investments is allocated at month end to the individual funds or external participants
based on the fund or participant's average daily cash balance in relation to total pooled investments. City
management has determined that the investment income related to certain funds should be allocated to
the General Fund. On a budget basis, the interest income is recorded in the General Fund. On a
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) basis, the income is reported in the fund where the
related investments reside. A transfer is then recorded to transfer an amount equal to the interest
earnings to the General Fund. This is the case for certain other governmental funds, Internal Service
Funds, and Trust and Agency Funds.

It is the City’s policy to charge interest at month end to those funds that have a negative average daily
cash balance. In certain instances, City management has determined that the interest expense related to
the fund should be allocated to the General Fund. On a budget basis, the interest expense is recorded in
the General Fund. On a GAAP basis, the interest expense is recorded in the fund and then a transfer
from the General Fund for an amount equal to the interest expense is made to the fund. This is the case
for certain other governmental funds, MTA, Laguna Honda Hospital, General Hospital Medical Center,
and the Internal Service Funds.

Income from non-pooled investments is recorded based on the specific investments held by the fund. The
interest income is recorded in the fund that earned the interest.

(e) Loans Receivable

For the purposes of the fund financial statements, the governmental funds expenditures relating to long-
term loans arising from loan subsidy programs are charged to operations upon funding and the loans are
recorded, net of an estimated allowance for potentially uncollectible loans, with an offset to a deferred
credit account.

The Mayor's Office of Housing administers several housing programs and issues loans to qualified
applicants. Many of these loans may be forgiven if certain terms and conditions of the loans are met.
They are accounted for in the other governmental funds as long-term loans receivable with an allowance
for forgivable loans, and an offsetting deferred credit account.

For purposes of the government-wide financial statements, long-term loans are not offset by deferred
credit accounts.

(f) Inventory

Inventory recorded in the proprietary funds primarily consists of construction materials and maintenance
supplies, as well as pharmaceutical supplies maintained by the hospitals. Generally, proprietary funds
value inventory at cost or average cost and expense supply inventory as it is consumed. This is referred
to as the consumption method of inventory accounting. An exception is the CWP which accounts for
materials and supplies using the purchase method. This method records items as expenses when they
are acquired. The governmental fund types also use the purchase method to account for supply
inventories, which are not material.

(g) Redevelopment Agency Property Held for Resale

Property held for resale is recorded as an asset at the lower of estimated cost or estimated conveyance
value. Estimated conveyance value is management’s estimate of net realizable value of a property based
on current intended use.
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(h) Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, facilites and improvements, machinery and equipment, and
infrastructure assets, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activity columns in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial individual cost
of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. Capital outlay is recorded as expenditures
of the General Fund and other governmental funds and as assets in the government-wide financial
statements to the extent the City’s capitalization threshold is met. Interest incurred during the construction
phase of the capital assets of business-type activities is reflected in the capitalized value of the asset
constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over the same period. Amortization of assets
acquired under capital leases is included in depreciation and amortization. Facilities and improvements,
infrastructure, machinery and equipment, and easements of the primary government, as well as the
component units, are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Facilities and Improvements 15t0 175
Infrastructure 15t0 70
Machinery and Equipment 2t0 75
Easements . 20

Works of art, historical treasures and zoological animals held for public exhibition, education, or research
in furtherance of public service, rather than financial gain, are not capitalized. These items are protected,
kept unencumbered, cared for and preserved by the City. It is the City’s policy to utilize proceeds from the
sale of these items for the acquisition of other items for collection and display.

(i) Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave Pay

Vacation pay, which may be accumulated up to ten weeks depending on an employee’s length of service,
is payable upon termination.

Sick leave may be accumulated up to six months, except for Local 21 members, who are all entitled to
accumulate all unused sick leave. Unused amounts accumulated prior to December 6, 1978 are vested
and payable upon termination of employment by retirement or disability caused by industrial accident or
death. Effective July 1, 2002, the City established a pilot “wellness incentive program” (the Program) to
promote workforce attendance. The Program was initially negotiated as part of the July 1, 2001 to June
30, 2004 labor contract between the City and forty-one labor organizations, representing about 48% of
the City’s workforce. It is described in several Memorandums of Understanding (MOUs) dated since July
1, 2001, between the City and the affected labor organizations. Under the terms of this MOUs and the
labor contracts, the Program is in effect from July 1, 2002 to at least June 30, 2005.

This Program provides:

Effective July 1, 2002, any full-time employee leaving the employment of the City upon service or
disability retirement may receive payment for a portion of sick leave earned but unused at the time of
separation. The amount of this payment shall be equal to 2.5% of sick leave balances earned but
unused at the time of separation times the number of whole years of continuous employment times
an employee’s salary rate, exclusive of premiums of supplements, at the time of separation. Vested
sick leave hours as described by Civil Service Commission rules, shall not be included in this
computation.

The City accrues for all salary-related items, including the Program, in the government-wide and

proprietary fund financial statements for which they are liable to make a payment directly and
incrementally associated with payments made for compensated absences on termination. The City
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includes its share of social security and Medicare payments made on behalf of the employees in the
accrual for vacation and sick leave pay.

(j) Bond Issuance Costs, Premiums, Discounts and Interest Accretion

In the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund type financial statements, long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund statement of net assets. Bond premiums and
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.
Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts as other
financing sources and uses, respectively, and bond issuance costs as debt service expenditures.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received are reported as debt
service expenditures.

Interest accreted on capital appreciation bonds is reported as accrued interest payable in the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements.

(k) Fund Equity
Reservations of Fund Equity

Reservations of fund balances of the governmental funds indicate that portion of fund equity which is not
available for appropriation for expenditure or is legally segregated for a specific future use. Following is a
brief description of the nature of certain reserves.

Reserves for cash requirements and emergencies - The City’s Charter was amended in November 2003
and replaced the requirements for a cash requirement reserve and an emergency reserve with the rainy
day reserve. '

Reserve for rainy day - The City’s Charter requires that the City set aside funds info a reserve account in
years in which revenue growth exceeds five percent compared to the year before. The City will be able to
spend those funds in years in which revenues decline or grow by less than two percent.

Reserve for assets not available for appropriation - Certain assets, primarily cash and investments
outside City Treasury and deferred charges, do not represent expendable available financial resources.
Therefore, a portion of fund equity is reserved to offset the balance of these assets.

Reserve for debt service - The fund balance of the debt service funds is reserved for the payment of debt
service in the subsequent year.

Reserves for encumbrances - Encumbrances are recorded as reservations of fund balances because
they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities. In certain other governmental funds, this accounting
treatment results in a deficit unreserved fund balance. This deficiency is carried forward to the next fiscal
year where it is applied against estimated revenues in the year the commitments are expended.

Reserve for appropriation carryforward — At the end of the fiscal year, certain budgeted expenditures are
authorized to be carried over and expended in the ensuing year. A reserve of fund balance is established
in the amount of these budget authorizations.

Reserve for subsequent years’ budgets — A portion of fund balance is reserved for subsequent years’
budgets. This balance includes the reserve required by the City's Administrative Code for the budget
incentive program for the purpose of making additional funds available for items and services that will
improve the efficient operations of departments.
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Restricted Net Assets

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements utilize a net assets presentation. Net
assets are categorized as invested in capital assets (net of related debt), restricted, and unrestricted.

e Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt — This category groups all capital assets, including
infrastructure, into one component of net assets. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding
balances of debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of these assets
reduce the balance in this category.

e Restricted Net Assets — This category represents net assets that have external restrictions imposed
by creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

e Unrestricted Net Assets — This category represents net assets of the City, not restricted for any
project or other purpose.

Designations of Fund Equity

Designations of fund balances (note 4) indicate that portion of fund balance that is not available for
appropriation based on management's plans for future use of the funds. Following is a brief description of
the nature of the designation as of June 30, 2004.

Designation for litigation and contingencies-— This designation represents management's estimate of
anticipated legal settlements or contingencies to be paid in the subsequent fiscal year.

Deficit Net Assets/Fund Balances

The Telecommunications and Information Internal Service Fund had a $2.1 million deficit total net assets
as of June 30, 2004. Approximately $0.05 million of this deficit is due to depreciation that is not funded
and will result in continuing deficits. The remaining portion of the deficit of total net assets relates to
operations-and is expected to be reduced in future years through anticipated rate increases or reductions
in operating expenses.

The Central Shops Internal Service Fund had a $0.8 million deficit as of June 30, 2004. The deficit is due
to depreciation and certain non-current accrued expenses that are not funded and will result in continuing
deficits in future years.

The Culture and Recreation Fund had a $8.3 million deficit as of June 30, 2004. It is due to incurring
costs for grant programs before receiving grant resources. It will be eliminated once the resources
become available.

The Moscone Convention Center Fund had a $3.8 million deficit as of June 30, 2004. The deficit will be
covered as budgeted hotel tax revenues are realized. :
(1) Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers are generally recorded as transfers in (out) except for certain types of transactions that
are described below.

(1) Charges for services are recorded as revenues of the performing fund and expenditures of the
requesting fund. Unbilled costs are recognized as an asset of the performing fund and a liability of
the requesting fund at the end of the fiscal year.
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(2) Reimbursements for expenditures, initially made by one fund which are properly applicable to
another fund, are recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as a reduction of
expenditures in the fund that is reimbursed.

(m) Refunding of Debt

Gains or losses occurring from advance refundings, completed subsequent to June 30, 1993, are
deferred and amortized into expense for both business-type activities and proprietary funds. For
governmental activities, they are deferred and amortized into expense if they occurred subsequent to
June 30, 2000.

(n) Cash Flows

Statements of cash flows are presented for proprietary fund types. Cash and cash equivalents include all
unrestricted and restricted highly liquid investments with original purchase maturities of three months or
less. Pooled cash and investments in the City's Treasury represent monies in a cash management pool
and such accounts are similar in nature to demand deposits.

(o) Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

(p) Reclassifications

Certain amounts presented as 2003 Summarized Comparative Financial Information in the basic financial
statements have been reclassified for comparative purposes to conform with the presentation in the 2004
basic financial statements.

(q) Effects of New Pronouncements

In March 2003, .GASB issued Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures — an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 3. This statement addresses common deposit and investment risks
related to credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk, and foreign currency risk. As an
element of interest rate risk, this statement requires certain disclosures of investments that have fair
values that are highly sensitive to changes in interest rates. Deposit and investment policies related to
the risk identified in this statement also should be disclosed. The City will implement the new reporting
requirements in the fiscal year 2004-05 financial statements.

The City is currently analyzing its accounting practices to determine the potential impact on the financial
statements for the following GASB Statements:

In November 2003, GASB issued Statement No. 42, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Impairment
of Capital Assets and for Insurance Recoveries. This statement establishes accounting and financial
reporting standards for impairment of capital assets. A capital asset is considered impaired when its
service utility has declined significantly and unexpectedly. This statement also clarifies and establishes
accounting requirements for insurance recoveries. This statement is effective for the City’s fiscal year
ending June 30, 2006.

In April 2004, GASB issued Statement No. 43, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans
Other Than Pension Plans. This statement establishes uniform financial reporting standards for other
postemployment benefits (OPEB) plans. The approach followed in this statement generally is consistent
with the approach adopted for defined benefit pension plans with modifications to reflect differences
between pension plans and OPEB plans. The statement applies for OPEB trust funds included in the
financial reports of plan sponsors or employers, as well as for the stand-alone financial reports of OPEB
plans or the public employee retirement systems, or other third parties, that administer them. This
statement also provides requirements for reporting of OPEB funds by administrators of multiple-employer
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OPEB plans, when the fund used to accumulate assets and pay benefits or premiums when due is not a
trust fund. This statement is effective for the City’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2007.

In May 2004, GASB issued Statement No. 44, Economic Condition Reporting: The Statistical Section—an
amendment of NCGA Statement 1. This statement amends the portions of NCGA Statement 1,
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Principles, that guide the preparation of the statistical
section. The statistical section presents detailed information, typically in ten-year trends, that assists
users in utilizing the basic financial statements, notes to basic financial statements, and required
supplementary information to assess the economic condition of a government. This statement adds new
information that financial statement users have identified as important and eliminates certain previous
requirements. This statement is effective for the City’s fiscal year ending June 30, 20086.

In June 2004, GASB issued Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which addresses how state and local governments
should account for and report their costs and obligations related to postemployment healthcare and other
nonpension benefits. Collectively, these benefits are commonly referred to as other postemployment
benefits, or OPEB. The statement generally requires that employers account for and report the annual
cost of OPEB and the outstanding obligations and commitments related to OPEB in essentially the same
manner as they currently do for pensions. Annual OPEB cost for most employers will be based on
actuarially determined amounts that, if paid on an ongoing basis, generally would provide sufficient
resources to pay benefits as they come due. This statement’s provisions may be applied prospectively
and do not require governments to fund their OPEB plans. An employer may establish its OPEB liability at
zero as of the beginning of the initial year of implementation; however, the unfunded actuarial liability is
required to be amortized over future periods. This statement also establishes disclosure requirements for
information about the plans in which an employer participates, the funding policy followed, the actuarial
valuation process and assumptions, and, for certain employers, the extent to which the plan has been
funded over time. This statement is effective for the City’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2008.

(r) Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of the City’s enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for
their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheets because the use of the
proceeds is limited by applicable bond covenants and resolutions. Restricted assets account for the
principal and interest amounts accumulated to pay debt service, unspent bond proceeds, and amounts
restricted for future capital projects. In addition, certain grant proceeds are restricted by the granting

agency.
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(3)  RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a) Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet
and the government-wide statement of net assets

Total fund balances of the City's governmental funds, $717,574, differs from net assets of governmental
activities, $1,306,741, reported in the statement of net assets. The difference primarily results from the
long-term economic focus in the statement of net assets versus the current financial resources focus in
the governmental fund balance sheets.

Balance Sheet/Statement of Net Assets (in thousands)

Total Long-term Internal Reclassi- Statement of
Govemmental Assets, Service fications and Net Assets
Funds Liabilities(1) Funds(2) Eliminations Totals
Assets
Deposits and investments with City Treasury............... $ 723043 $ - $ 6,705 $ - $ 720,748
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury.......... 74,426 - 25,725 - 100,151
Receivables, net:
Property taxes and penalties.............cccccoeeeieiiinnnnns 34,595 - - - 34,595
Other local taxes..........cc.ceeeiieriiiieeiiirieienieciinennnns 163,017 - - - 163,017
Federal and state grants and subventions............... 161,842 - - - 161,842
Charges for services . 13,731 - - - 13,731
Interest and other.............ccccceeeeeiil 4,147 - 583 - 4,730
Due from other funds....... 58,301 - - (58,301) -
Due from component unit...............c.ooeemiiiiiiiiiiinnns 849 - - - 849
Loans receivable, net............cccooeeiiiiiiiiiiiininiiniiin, 214,650 - - - 214,650
Capital assets, net....................... - 2,311,608 2,955 - 2,314,563
Deferred charges and other assets 8,223 8,909 5,478 - 22,610
Total @SSEtS.....coeeeenieeieeiiiii e e 1,456,824 2,320,517 41,446 (58,301) 3,760,486
Liabilities
Accounts payable. 142,828 - 5,466 - 148,294
Accrued payroll.............oeeereeeerennen. 41,346 - 1,265 - 42,611
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay.. - 124,734 3,683 - 128,417
Accrued workers' compensation...............c..oocoeiuiennnn - 212,414 1,216 - 213,630
Estimated claims payable.................ccccociiieninnnnns - 79,805 - - 79,805
Accrued interest payable..................cccoeeneee. - 6,199 986 - 7,185
Deferred tax, grant and subvention revenues 61,771 (56,485) - - 5,286
Due to other funds/internal balances.......................... 89,861 - 859 (58,301) 32,419
Deferred credits and other liabilities........................... 353,444 (232,887) 207 - 120,764
Bonds, loans, capital leases, and other payables......... 50,000 1,378,064 247,270 - 1,675,334
Total Liabilities............uveeereeiiiiiiieieeeee e 739,250 1,511,844 260,952 (58,301) 2,453,745
Fund balances/net assets )
Total fund balances/net assets............c...ccceevvvevnnenns 717,574 808,673 (219,506) - 1,306,741
Total liabilities and fund balances/net assets............ $ 1,456,824 $ 2,320,517 $ 41,446 $ (58,301) $ 3,760,486
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When capital assets (land, infrastructure, buildings, and equipment) that are to be used
in governmental activities are purchased or constructed, the costs of those assets are
reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, the statement of net assets
includes those capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, among the assets of the
City as a whole.

Cost of capital assets.............ocee e

Accumulated depreciation. .. ... ... ...t ier it ii e e e e e e

Bond issuance costs are expended in governmental funds when paid and are capitalized
and amortized over the life of the corresponding bonds for purposes of the statement of
net assets.

Long-term liabilties applicable to the City's governmental activities are not due and
payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. All
liabilities, both current and long-term, are reported in the statement of net assets.

Accrued vacation and SiCK I8aVE PaY...........eoet it iis ditiis ht it e i e e e e e e e

Accrued workers' compensation...
Estimated claims payable... .
Bonds, loans, capital Ieases and other payables

Deferred credits and other liabilities... .........cco oo e iie i e

Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but rather is recognized
as an expenditure when paid.

Because the focus of governmental funds is on short-term financing, some assets will
not be available to pay for current period expenditures. Those assets (for example,
receivables) are offset by deferred revenues in the governmental funds and thus are not
included in fund balance.

Deferred tax, grant and sUbVeNntion reVeNUe................ooiiiiit e it iee e e
Deferred credits and other liabilities... ............cco oot it iit i e

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities,
such as capital lease financing, equipment maintenance, printing and mailing services,
and telecommunications, to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of certain internal
service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets.

Net assets before adjustments... .
Adjustments for internal balances wnth San Francnsco Flnance Corporatlon
Capital lease receivables from other governmental and enterprise funds...

Deferred charges and other @ssets... ... ... ...t iiniinesces i s
Deferred credits and other liabilities... ... ...... et iii i
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(b) Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide
statement of activities '

The net change in fund balances for governmental funds, ($165,764), differs from the change in net
assets for governmental activities ($6,081), reported in the statement of activities. The differences arise
primarily from the long-term economic focus in the statement of activities versus the current financial
resources focus in the governmental funds. The effect of the differences is illustrated below.

Total Long-term Capital- Internal Long-term Statement of
Govemmental Revenues/ related Service Debt Activities
Funds Expenses(3) ltems(4) Funds(5) Transactions(6) Totals
Revenues
Property taxes..........ccoveveeiinnrereeaiinnnne e s $ 721437 $ 2,349 $ - $ - $ - $ 723786
Business taxes... 264,832 - - - - 264,832
Other local taxes........c.ccerveiireiiiiinneiee e 509,455 - - - - 509,455
Licenses, permits and franchises. 23,788 - - - - 23,788
Fines, forfeitures and penalties.... 25,183 - - - - 25,183
Interest and investment income... 11,630 - - 226 - 11,856
Rents and CONCESSIONS...........eueveeereriiemremmiinieaanees 58,979 - - - - 58,979
Intergovernmental: -
Federal.........cccuviieerereeeeeieniiiiiieee e eee e 344,155 - - - - 344,155
State.....coceveeeiieviieiiiiirienenns 630,953 - - - - 630,953
Other.....c.cceene 18,259 - - - - 18,259
Charges for services... 217,647 - - - - 217,647
OthEr rEVENUES..........coereereeniniieieeeninirrrnaenesieeeens 57,144 - - - - 57,144
Total FEVENUES........eevverceeirccceceiiieeeetreee s 2,883,462 2,349 - 226 - 2,886,037
Expenditures/Expenses
Current:
PUbIIC ProteCtion............cocuvreeriieeiierneeieeenieinees 706,758 15,337 10,019 (4,534) - 727,580
Public works, transportation and commerce............ 165,555 (2,617) 14,924 (8,683) - 169,179
Human welfare and neighborhood development...... 662,948 (12,103) 524 (119) - 651,250
Community health..............cccoooviiieiinnnnis . 512,914 4,089 820 (757) - 517,066
Culture and recreation............... 273,163 (17,583) 17,686 (5,345) (35,734) 232,187
General administration and finance.. 163,709 13,765 15,862 (78) - 183,258
General City responsibilities................ccccoeeeieeene 74623 748 (2,278) 437 73,530
Debt service:
Principal retirement..............cooovevieneieninninenniens 78,831 - - - (78,831) -
Interest and fiscal charges. 61,886 - - 5,467 18,778 86,131
Payments to refunded bond escrow agent.............. - - - - - -
Bond iSSUANCE COSES.........vveumemrieeerreniiininireeaans 1,350 - - - (1,350) -
Capital OUIY..........cccueriirriieiniinir et 165,872 - (165,872) - - -
Total expenditures/expenses.............ccceeeeuein 2,857,609 1,636 (106,037) (16,327) (96,700) 2,640,181
Other financing sources (uses)/changes in
net assets
Net transfers (to) from other funds..............c.cccoeeeee (252,192) - - 255 - (251,937)
Issuance of bonds and loans:
Face value of bonds issued..............ccceeeinniinnnenee 116,645 - - - (116,645) -
Premium on issuance of bonds... 2,156 - - - (2,156) -
Discount on issuance of bonds............cccoeeviiiennnnne 1,411 - - - (1,411) -
Payment to bond refunding escrow agent.................. (65,802) - - 65,802
Other Financing sources - capital leases................... 6,165 - - (6,165) - -
Total other financing sources (uses)/changes
INNEtassets..........covveeerieeeie i (191,617) - - (5,910) (54,410) (251,937)
Net change for the year. [ $ (165764) § 713 $ 106,037 § 10643 § 42,290 $ (6,081)
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Because some property taxes will not be collected for several months after the City's fiscal year ends, they are not
considered as available revenues in the govemmental funds..............oooiiiiiii $ 2,349

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and

therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Certain long-term liabilties reported in the prior

year statement of net assets were paid during the current period resulting in expenditures in the govemmental

funds. This is the amount by which the increase in long term liabilities exceeded expenses reported in the

statement of activities that do not require the use of current financial reSOUICES. ..........couviiiiriinii $  (39,293)

Some expenditures reported in the govemmental funds pertain to the establishment of deferred credits on long-term
loans since the loans are not considered "available” to pay current period expenditures. The deferred credits are not

reported in the statement Of ACHIVIEIES. ..........coueriiiie 37,657
S (1.636)

When capital assets that are to be used in govermental activities are purchased or constructed, the resources
expended for those assets are reported as expenditures in govemmental funds. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense. As a result, fund balance decreases by the amount of financial resources expended, whereas net assets
decrease by the amount of depreciation expense charged for the year, and the loss on disposal of capital assets.

Capital EXPENGIUES. ... e.veveeriererer st ettt el $ 176,174
Depreciation eXpense. ..........coovrerirreiiniiaaiiniines . (63,343)
L0SS ON diSPOSal Of CAPIAL BSSES. ......euveuirrreesites ettt (44)
EXPENSE OF CIP....et et eteaeseaes st (6,750)

[0 e o T UUUUT U U U PP PP PPPPPPPI ISP DI EAEPET TR $ 106,037

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as capital lease
financing, equipment maintenance, printing and mailing services, and telecommunications, to individual funds. The
adjustments for intemal service funds "close” those funds by charging additional amounts to participating
govemnmental activities to completely cover the intemal service fund's costs for the Year............ccccvveiereeinieiinneneeeceenenees $ 10,643
Lease payments on the Moscone Convention Center (note 8) are reported as a culture and recreation expenditure
in the govemmental funds and, thus, have the effect of reducing fund balance because current financial resources
have been used. For the City as a whole, however, the principal payments reduce the liability in the statement of net
assets and do not result in an expense in the statement of activities. The City’s capital lease obligation was reduced
because principal payments were made to lessee. '
Total ProPEMtY FENE PAYMENES. ........c.corrurreuetetnsesesstreses et es e oa s h s b s s $ 35,734

Bond issuance costs are expended in govemmental funds when paid, and are capitalized and amortized over the
life of the coresponding bonds for purposes of the statement of activities.

0N ISSUBMOE COSES. .. vveveeeeeeeaeeneeieeesssesseeaaassaassessteeesaanateses s baessean s s e aaaeassteeteseeessa sttt eab b s e e s s e b s e e st $ 1,350
Amortization of bond issuance costs... (437)
DFEIEIICE. .+ vvveeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eseeeetesanseeaaseasarseeassseansseesbee e aaaeeese e a b e e bR s e e s s e e s b e E et te et s e s e st $ 913
Bond premiums and discounts are expended in the govemmental funds when the bonds are issued, and are
capitalized in the statement of net assets. This is the amount of premiums capitalized during the current period.................. $ (1,411)
Repayment of bond principal is reported as expenditures in governmental funds and, thus, have the effect of
reducing fund balance because current financial resources have been used. For the City as a whole, however, the
principal payments reduce the liabilities in the statement of net assets and do not result in expenses in the
statement of activities. The City's bonded debt was reduced because principal payments were made to bond
holders.
PRNGIDAI PAYMENTS MAGE. ...+ ceeevesceeseaesseisesasss s s s es e b r e s $ 78,831
Payments to escrow for refunded debt 65,802
$ - 144,633
" Bond proceeds and capital leases are reported as other financing sources in governmental funds and thus
contribute to the change in fund balance. In the government-wide statements, however, issuing debt and entering
into capital lease arangments increase long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets and do not affect the
statement of activities. Proceeds were received from:
GEneral OBIIGALION DONAS. .......v.v.eevveeetireuceseeaeses s et it $  (50,440)
Refunding general obligation bonds and refunding settlement obligation bonds.. (66,205)
OIS ..+ ee e ee e e e e e et e e et e aaeaeeaaeaeaeaeehabeteanne oo eeeeeeeeeeeeahaaeaeee T et e eeeee e e et e et et e s e h e e et L st (2,156)
(118,801)
S 25832
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Interest expense in the statement of activities differs from the amount reported in governmental funds because (1)
additional accrued and accreted interest was calculated for bonds, notes payable and capital leases, (2)
amortization of bond discounts, premiums and refunding losses which are expended within the fund statements, and
(3) additional interest expense was recognized on the accrual of an arbitrage rebate liability which will not be
recognized in the governmental funds until the liability is due and payable.

Interest payment on capital lease obligations on the Moscone Convention Center............ooo e (18,849)
Amortization of bond premiums, discounts and refunding I0SSES. .........c.coooiiiiiiiiii e . (327)
Reduction in arbitrage rebate Hability.............ccuimiiiiiiri 398

$  (18,778)
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BUDGETARY RESULTS RECONCILED TO RESULTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Budgetary Results Reconciliation

The budgetary process is based upon accounting for certain transactions on a basis other than GAAP
basis. The results of operations are presented in the budget-to-actual comparison statement in
accordance with the budgetary process (Budget basis) to provide a meaningful comparison with the
budget.

The major differences between the Budget basis “actual” and GAAP basis are timing differences. Timing
differences represent transactions that are accounted for in different periods for Budget basis and GAAP
basis reporting. Certain revenues accrued on a Budget basis have been deferred for GAAP reporting.
These primarily relate to the accounting for property tax revenues under the Teeter Plan (note 6).

The fund balance of the General Fund as of June 30, 2004 on a Budget basis is reconciled to the fund
balance on a GAAP basis as follows (in thousands):

General
Fund
Fund balance - Budget basis............ccceeveertvreveeseieienee e 9 222,611
Unrealized gain on investments.............oooiiiiiiiiii i 277
Deferred charges and assets not available for appropriation...................... 7,142
Cumulative excess property tax revenues recognized on a Budget basis....... (19,882)
(0111 SRR 287
Fund balance - GAAP DaSIS..........eeeeeeeeereeeeeeeareereeerenseseereeeeneeeenneeenes 9 210,435

General Fund Budget basis fund balance at June 30, 2004 is composed of the following (in thousands):

Reserved for rainy day............ccoeveeerieriiiiieieeanninn e $ 55,139
Reserved for encumbrances............ccooceiiiii i 42,501
Reserved for appropriation carryforward................... 32,813
Reserved for subsequent years' budgets:.................
Reserved for budget incentive program................. 2,588
Reserved for salaries and benefits (MOU).............. 3,654
Reserved for litigation...............ccoiien e 2,940
Total reserved amounts...........c.cooeeveee e $ 139,635
Designated for litigation and contingencies................ 27,970 ‘
Unreserved - available for appropriation................... 55,006
Total unreserved amounts.............cooeoeeiiien. 82,976
Fund Balance, June 30, 2004 - Budget basis $ 222,611

Of the $55.0 million unreserved-available for appropriation, $26.3 million has been subsequently
appropriated as part of the General Fund budget for fiscal year 2005.
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DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The City’s deposits and investments are invested pursuant to investment policy guidelines established by
the City Treasurer subject to review by the Treasury Oversight Committee. The Treasury Oversight
Committee established under California Government Code Sections 27130 to 27137 is composed of
various City officials and representatives of agencies with large cash balances. The objectives of the
policy are, in order of priority, preservation of capital, liquidity, and yield. The policy addresses the
soundness of financial institutions in which the City will deposit funds, types of investment instruments as
permitted by the California Government Code, and the percentage of the portfolio which may be invested
in certain instruments with longer terms to maturity. Investments permitted by the City’s investment policy
include the following:

¢ Public Time Deposits
Public Demand Accounts
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit
U.S. Government Securities
e Treasury Bills
e Treasury Bonds
e Treasury Notes
Federal Agencies
e Federal Home Loan Bank
e Federal Farm Credit Bank
e Federal National Mortgage Association
e Federal Mortgage Corporation
e Student Loan Marketing Association
Money Market Instruments
Commercial Paper
Bankers’ Acceptances
Repurchase Agreements
Reverse Repurchase Agreements

The City’s investment policy identifies certain restrictions related to the above investments. Investments
held by the City Treasurer during the year did not include repurchase agreements or reverse repurchase
agreements.

Other deposits and investments maintained outside the City Treasury are invested pursuant to governing
bond covenants or California Government Code provisions. The following provides a brief description of
the nature of these investments.

Employees’ Retirement System

The Retirement System’s funds are invested pursuant to policy guidelines established by the Retirement
System’s Board. The objective of the investment policy is to maximize the expected return of the fund at
an agreed upon level of risk. The Retirement Board has established percentage guidelines for types of
investments to ensure the portfolio is diversified. As of June 30, 2004, the Retirement System had no
investments in any one organization that represented 5% or more of plan net assets. Investments held by
the Retirement System during the year did not include reverse repurchase agreements.

Other Funds

Other funds consist primarily of deposits and investments with trustees related to the issuance of bonds
and to certain loan programs operated by the City. These funds are invested either in accordance with
bond covenants and are pledged for payment of principal, interest, and specified capital improvements or
in accordance with grant agreements and may be restricted for the issuance of loans.

62



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2004

Component Units

The investment policy of the Redevelopment Agency is governed by Article 2 of the California
Government Code (Code). Investments are restricted to certain types of instruments and certain of these
instruments are only allowed within limits. The Code permits repurchase agreements, but reverse
repurchase agreements require the prior approval of the Agency Commission. The Agency does not
participate in reverse repurchase agreements or other high-risk investments as defined by the Agency’s
investment policy. It is the Agency’s intention to hold investments until maturity, unless earlier liquidation

would result in an investment gain.

The funds of the TIDA are invested solely in the City Treasury.

Deposits and investments

Total City deposits and investments at fair value are as follows (in thousands):

Primary Component
Government Units
Governmental ~ Business-type Fiduciary
Activities Activities Funds Total
Deposits and investments with
City Treasury.......cceeeeeveereceiiinnnnennns $ 729748 ' § 674,887 $ 392,585 2 § 1,797,220 $ 2,096
Deposits and investments outside
City Treasury.........ccccoevvinnnannnns 100,151 ° 8,295 12,421,630 12,630,076 179,127
Restricted assets:
Deposits and investments with

City Treasury........c.cooevvvueeenennes - 423,472 - 423,472 -
Deposits and investments outside .

City Treasury..........cccccuunrrennnnnns - 325,786 - 325,786 236,021
Invested securities lending collateral 1,356,618 1,356,618 -
Total deposits and investments.......... '$ 829,899 $ 1,432,440 $ 14,170,833 $ 16,433,172 417,244
DepOSits......cceevererrieiiriii s $ 14,579 $ 4,674 $ 13,867 $ 33,120 65,467
Investments..........ccoevveniiiiiininnnnnn, 815,320 1,427,766 14,156,966 16,400,052 351,777
Total deposits and investments.......... $ 829,899 $ 1,432,440 $ 14,170,833 $ 16,433,172 $ 417,244

' Includes deposits and investments with the City Treasury of total governmental funds ($723,043) and

internal service funds ($6,705).

2 Includes deposits and investments with the City Treasury of pension and other employee benefit trust funds ($87,187),

investment trust fund ($206,091) and agency funds ($99,307).

3 Includes deposits and investments outside the City Treasury of total governmental funds ($74,426) and internal

service funds ($25,725).
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Cash and Deposits
The City had cash and deposits at June 30, 2004, as follows (in thousands):

Primary Government Component Units

Govermnmental Business-type Fiduciary
Activities Activities Funds

Carrying Bar Camrying Bark Carrying Ban Carrying Bank
Amount Balance Amount Balance Amount Balance Amount Balance

Cashonhand......cccceveeeee § 147  $ - $ 617 $§ - $ - $ - $ 1 8 -
Federally insured deposits. ... 600 600 1,353 1,352 - - 26 1,827
Collateralized deposits™........ 13,832 101,500 170 60 - - 65,440 65,439
Uninsured and

uncollateralized. ............... - - 2,534 2,428 13,867 13,867 - -

$ 14579 $ 102100 $ 4674 § 3840 § 13867 $ 13867 _$ 65467 _$ 66966

* Under the City's cash management policy, investments are converted to cash as checks are
presented for payment. At June 30, 2004, the carrying amount of collateralized deposits has been
reduced by the amount of outstanding checks of approximately $88.4 million. Of the $88.4 million of
outstanding checks, $38.7 million relates to the San Francisco Unified School District and
Community College District which have been reflected in an investment trust fund.

The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan associations to secure
the City's deposits not covered by Federal depository insurance by pledging government securities as
collateral. The fair value of pledged securities must equal at least 110% of the City’s deposits or 150% of
mortgage backed collateral. The collateral must be held at the pledging bank’s trust department or other
bank, acting as the pledging bank’s agent, in the City’'s name.

The $16.4 million of uninsured and uncollateralized cash outlined above consists of $13.9 million of cash
held on behalf of the Employees’ Retirement System by a third party trustee, $0.17 million, $2.1 million,
$0.08 million, $0.22 million, $0.01 million, of cash held on behalf of Port Commission, Parking Garages,
San Francisco General Hospital, Municipal Railway, and Parking and Traffic, respectively, by third party
trustees.

Investments

Investments of the City are summarized below. The investments that are represented by specific
identifiable investment securities are classified as to custodial credit risk by three categories. They are as
follows:
Category 1 - includes investments that are insured or registered or securities held by the City or
its agent in the City’s name;
Category 2 - includes uninsured and unregistered investments, with the securities held by
counterparty’s trust department or agent in the City’s name;
Category 3 - includes uninsured and unregistered investments, with the securities held by the
counterparty, or by its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name.
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At June 30, 2004, investments included the following (in thousands):

Category Carrying
Type of Investment 1 2 3 value
Primary Government including Pension
and investment Trust Funds
Investments in City Treasury:
U.S. government securities... ... ... oo veece e e $ 1,181,984 $ - $ - $ 1,181,984
Federal agencies... [P 175,333 - - 175,333
Commercial Paper 565,269 - - 565,269
Negotiable certmcates of depos:t 289,955 - - 289,955
Public time deposit... e .. 100 - - 100
Total lnvestments in Clty Treasury 2,212,641 - - 2,212,641
Employees' Retirement System (ERS):
U.S. government securities...... ... oo e 285,866 - 2,026 287,892
Short term bills and notes... ... ... .o oo 16,989 - 33,987 50,976
Debt securities... 1,046,155 - 75,912 1,122,067
Equity securltles . 4,770,379 - 6,902 4,777,281
Total categonzed lnvestments 6,119,389 - 118,827 6,238,216
Non-categorized investments:
Mortgage backed securities.. . 554,065
Fixed interest mutual funds.. . . 551,627
Equity investments, mcludlng mutual funds... 711,151
Real estate.. 958,368
Venture capltal . 1,311,960
Money market mutual funds e e et e e 757,205
Investment in lending agents' short-term
Investment pool........... e 1,356,618
Investments lent to broker—dealers R 1,325,171
Total non-categorized mvestments 7,526,165
Total Employees' Retirement System... 13,764,381
Other Funds:
U.S. governmental securities... ...... 56,434 4195 327,951 388,580
Equity Securities... oo . e 770 - - 770
Total categorlzed |nvestmenls 57,204 4,195 327,951 389,350
Non-categorized investments:
Commercial Paper... 722
Money market mutual funds 32,958
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